
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

February 01, 2022 at 5:30 PM  

Council Meeting Room, 101 North State Street, 
Abbeville, Louisiana 70510 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE POSTED:  January 31, 2022 at 4:00 P.M.  

REGULAR ORDER OF BUSINESS 

             Call to Order by Mayor 
             Roll Call by Kathy Faulk  
             Prayer 
             Pledge  

PERSONNEL 

1. To appoint Police Department personnel. 

PRESENTATIONS 

1. Overview of Strategic Plan for Economic Development for City of Abbeville as part of the Louisiana 

Development Ready Communities Program by Stacey Neal, State Director, Community 

Competitiveness. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
                  (To allow comments on any of the following items prior to action.) 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. To authorize the Mayor to execute the Audit Engagement letter with Darnall, Sikes and Frederick. 

2. To authorize the Mayor to execute the AUP (agreed upon procedures) agreement with Darnall, Sikes 

and Frederick. 

3. To authorize the Mayor to execute the agreement with DOTD relative to the Downtown Abbeville 

Streetscaping Phase II project. 

4. To approve the quote from Bayou Fencing for the repair of the fence along the coulee at LaFitte Park. 

The fence was damaged as a result of the hurricane. 

5. To authorize the Mayor to execute the Low income household water assistance vendor agreement 

with the Louisiana Housing Corporation. 

6. To approve a Class B beer and liquor permit for Murphy Oil USA located at 3007 Veterans Memorial 

Drive. 

7. To approve a variance to the Airport Hazard Zoning Ordinance to Dunn Exploration Company, LLC for 

the installation of a temporary drilling rig up to 130 feet in height with the understanding that all 

conditions designated in the FAA Determination of No Hazard to Air Navigation for Temporary 

Structure are met. 

8. To approve the quote from Allen Enterprises, Inc. in the amount of $8,765.69 for the purchase of a 

new wind cone for the Airport. 

9. To authorize the purchase of one 5hp, Zoeller submersible pump to be purchased from Griner Drilling 

at a cost of $8,275.00 and the installation of the pump by to be performed by MMR for $620.00 for 

North Abbeville lift station.  

10. To approve the quote from Luke Deshotel Construction to pump out and clean sewer plant basin #4 at 

a cost of $4,500 plus $.60 per gallon.  The expense is to be paid from American Rescue Plan Act 

funds. 

11. To surplus unit 618, a silver Ford pickup truck, unit 560, a Snapper lawn tractor, unit 279, a 1988 Ford 

800 pole truck, unit 274 a Simplicity tractor, unit 361, a diesel Gradall hydraulic excavator, unit #501, a 

2008 Chevrolet Impala from the City Marshal's office and various other equipment.  

12. Operation Save a Life Smoke Detector distribution - Chief Jude Mire. 

1



13. To approve change order #2 relative to the LaFitte Park Walking Trail project.  The change order 

reduces the contract amount by $3,091.69. 

14. To approve payment of partial payment number 3 in the amount of $33,433.71 payable to Patriot 

Construction and Industrial, LLC for the LaFitte Park Walking Trail project. 

15. To adopt a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an act of acceptance from Patriot Construction 

and Industrial, LLC relative to the LaFitte Park Walking Trail project. 

16. Discussion and possible action to permit street legal golf carts on City roads with insurance, horn, 

lights, seatbelts and windshield required - Councilman Francis Touchet, Jr. 

17. To approve the quote from American Integration Contractors in the amount of $42,842.48 for the 

Comeaux Park Security Camera upgrade - Councilman Brady Broussard, Jr. and Councilman Francis 

Touchet, Jr. 

18. To authorize the Mayor to negotiate a purchase price with the owners of 601 S. East Street.  Said 

price not to exceed the appraised value of the property.  If successful, the City Attorney is authorized 

to conduct such title work as deemed necessary, and further to authorize the Mayor to execute a cash 

deed transferring ownership of said property to the City. 

19. To approve payment of partial payment number 3 (final) in the amount of $16,653.00 payable to 

Glenn Lege Construction, LLC for the cleaning of the concrete lined coulee project. 

20. To approve the quote in the amount $5,021.60 for the repair of the bucket truck and the quote in the 

amount of $6,884.25 for the repair of the pole truck.  Both quotes are from Versalift.  

21. To approve the quote in the amount of $9,760.00 from Echo Powerline for the installation of a 3-phase 

4/0 ACSR tie for 3 spans.  This will tie in Gertrude Electrical Substation to Felicity Electricity 

Substation.   

OLD BUSINESS 

1. None. 

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS AND UPDATES 

1.        Main Street Manager  

2.        Public Works Director 

3.        Parks and Recreation Director 

TOPICS FOR DISCUSSION 

1.        Council Members 

ADJOURN 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
if you need special assistance, please contact 

Mayor Mark Piazza’s office at 337-893-8550, 
describing the assistance that is necessary. 

2



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 13, 2021 

 

 

 
Mark Piazza, Mayor 
P.O. Box 1170 
Abbeville, LA 70511-1170 

 

Dear Mayor Piazza, 
 
We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide for the City of Abbeville for 
the year ended December 31, 2021.    
 
Audit Scope and Objectives 
 
We will audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of City of 
Abbeville as of and for the year ended December 31, 2021.  Accounting standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP) provide for certain required supplementary information (RSI), such 
as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the Government’s basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. As 
part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the Government’s RSI in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS). These limited 
procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following 
RSI is required by GAAP and will be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 
 

1. Budgetary comparison schedules of General Fund and Sales Tax Funds. 
2. Schedule of finding progress for the employees’ health insurance programs after retirement. 
3. Schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability. 
4. Schedule of contributions. 

 
  

3



Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor 
City of Abbeville 
Page 2 
 

 

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information other than RSI that accompanies the 
Government’s financial statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the 
auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with GAAS, and we will provide an opinion on it in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole in a report combined with our auditor’s report on the financial statements: 

 

1. Schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
2. Major governmental funds budgetary comparison. 
3. Nonmajor governmental funds combining financial statements. 
4. Utility fund comparative departmental analysis of revenues and expenses. 

 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in 
conformity with GAAP; and report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the 
second paragraph when considered in relation to the financial statements as a whole. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements. The objectives also 
include reporting on: 
 

• Internal control over financial reporting and compliance with provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and award agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
material effect on the financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

• Internal control over compliance related to major programs and an opinion (or disclaimer 
of opinion) on compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of federal awards that could have a direct and material effect on each major program in 
accordance with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements and Single Audit 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and will include 
tests of your accounting records of City of Abbeville and other procedures we consider necessary to enable 
us to express such opinions.  As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing 
Standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 
  

4



Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor 
City of Abbeville 
Page 3 
 

 

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or 
(4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by 
management or employees acting on behalf of the government. Because the determination of waste and 
abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to perform specific procedures 
to detect waste or abuse in financial audits nor do they expect auditors to provide reasonable assurance of 
detecting waste or abuse. 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and 
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that 
some material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and 
performed in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards. In addition, an audit is not 
designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not 
have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level 
of management of any material errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that 
comes to our attention. We will also inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws 
or governmental regulations that come to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Our responsibility as 
auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we 
are not engaged as auditors. 

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the 
accounts, tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and certain 
assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and financial institutions.  We 
will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the engagement, and they may bill you 
for responding to this inquiry. 

 Audit Procedures—Internal Control 

We will obtain an understanding of the government and its environment, including internal control relevant 
to the audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and 
obtain evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions.  Tests of controls may 
be performed to test the effectiveness of certain controls that we consider relevant to preventing and 
detecting errors and fraud that are material to the financial statements and to preventing and detecting 
misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance matters that have a direct and material 
effect on the financial statements. Our tests, if performed, will be less in scope than would be necessary to 
render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal 
control issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. An audit is not designed to 
provide assurance on internal control or to identify significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. 

5



Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor 
City of Abbeville 
Page 4 
 

 

Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to 
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be 
communicated under AICPA professional standards and Government Auditing Standards. 

As required by the Uniform Guidance, we will perform tests of controls over compliance to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of controls that we consider relevant to preventing or detecting 
material noncompliance with compliance requirements applicable to each major federal award program. 
However, our tests will be less in scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on those controls 
and, accordingly, no opinion will be expressed in our report on internal control issued pursuant to the 
Uniform Guidance. 

Audit Procedures—Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we will perform tests of the Government’s compliance with the provisions of applicable laws, 
regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide 
an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion in our report on compliance 
issued pursuant to Government Auditing Standards. 

The Uniform Guidance requires that we also plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the auditee has complied with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of 
federal awards applicable to major programs. Our procedures will consist of tests of transactions and other 
applicable procedures described in the OMB Compliance Supplement for the types of compliance 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each of City of Abbeville’s major programs. 
For federal programs that are included in the Compliance Supplement, our compliance and internal control 
procedures will relate to the compliance requirements that the Compliance Supplement identifies as being 
subject to audit. The purpose of these procedures will be to express an opinion on City of Abbeville’s 
compliance with requirements applicable to each of its major programs in our report on compliance issued 
pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. 

Other Services 

We will also assist in preparing and submitting to the applicable authority the financial statements with 
related notes, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, data collection form, and the depreciation 
schedule of City of Abbeville in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles based on 
information provided by you. These nonaudit services do not constitute an audit under Government Auditing 
Standards and such services will not be conducted in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. We 
will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The other services are 
limited to the financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional judgment, 
reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that could be construed as assuming 
management responsibilities. 

 Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements and Single Audit 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for 
designing, implementing, establishing, and maintaining effective internal controls relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and for evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities to help ensure that appropriate 
goals and objectives are met; following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial 
information is reliable and properly reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems 

6



Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor 
City of Abbeville 
Page 5 
 

 

designed to achieve compliance with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are 
also responsible for the selection and application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements and all accompanying information in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant agreements. 
 
Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records, and related 
information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including 
information from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us 
with (1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties 
and all related-party relationships and transactions, and other matters; (2) additional information that we 
may request for the purpose of the audit; and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the government from 
whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence.  At the conclusion of our audit, we will require 
certain written representations from you about your responsibilities for the financial statements; compliance 
with laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements; and other responsibilities required by GAAS and 
Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and for 
confirming to us in the written representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements 
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as a whole. 
 
You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect 
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) 
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your 
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the government received in 
communications from employees, former employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are 
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the government complies with applicable laws, regulations, 
contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, or contracts or grant agreements that we report. 

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information, which we have been engaged to 
report on, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  You 
agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains, and indicates 
that we have reported on, the supplementary information. You also agree to include the audited financial 
statements with any presentation of the supplementary information that includes our report thereon.  Your 
responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1)you are responsible 
for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with GAAP; (2) you believe the 
supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with GAAP; 
(3) the methods of measurement or presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, 
if they have changed, the reasons for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant 
assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary 
information.  With regard to publishing the financial statements on your website, you understand that 
websites are a means of distributing information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information 
contained in those sites or to consider the consistency of other information on the website with the original 
document. 
  

7



Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor 
City of Abbeville 
Page 6 
 

 

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a process for tracking the status of audit 
findings and recommendations. Management is also responsible for identifying and providing report copies 
of previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance audits or other studies related to the 
objectives discussed in the Audit Scope and Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes 
relaying to us corrective actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from 
those audits, attestation engagements, performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for 
providing management’s views on our current findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as your 
planned corrective actions, for the report, and for the timing and format for providing that information. 
 
You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes 
and any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management 
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that 
you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and have 
accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by designating an 
individual, preferably from senior management, with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the 
adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them. 
 
Engagement Administration, Fees, and Other 
 
We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, or other confirmations we 
request and will locate any documents selected by us for testing. 
 
We will provide copies of our reports to City of Abbeville; however, management is responsible for 
distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restricted by law or regulation, or containing 
privileged and confidential information, copies of our reports are to be made available for public inspection. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Darnall, Sikes, & Frederick and constitutes 
confidential information. However, subject to applicable laws and regulations, audit documentation and 
appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner to the Legislative 
Auditor or its designee, a federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S. Government 
Accountability Office for the purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to carry 
out oversight responsibilities.  
 
We will notify you of any such request. If requested, access to such audit documentation will be provided 
under the supervision of Darnall, Sikes, & Frederick personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide 
copies of selected audit documentation to the aforementioned parties. These parties may intend or decide 
to distribute the copies or information contained therein to others, including other governmental agencies. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of five years after the report 
release date or for any additional period requested by the Legislative Auditor. If we are aware that a federal 
awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit 
finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation. 
 
Steven G. Moosa is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing 
the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them.  We expect to begin our audit on approximately 
February 2022 and to issue our reports no later than June 30, 2022. 
 
  

8



Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor 
City of Abbeville 
Page 7 
 

 

Our fee for services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs (such as report 
reproduction, word processing, postage, travel, copies, telephone, etc.) except that we agree that our gross 
fee, including expenses, will not exceed $42,000 for the year’s engagement.  Non attest services will be 
billed at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket costs.  Our standard hourly rates vary according to the 
degree of responsibility involved and the experience level of the personnel assigned to your audit. Our 
invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable upon presentation.  
If we elect to terminate our services for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been 
completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have not completed our report. You will be 
obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through 
the date of termination. The above fee is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the 
assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional 
time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional 
costs. 
 
 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of City of Abbeville’s financial statements.  
Our report will be addressed to the President and Council of City of Abbeville. Circumstances may arise in 
which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending 
on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add a separate 
section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor’s report, or if necessary, 
withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with 
you in advance. If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not 
formed opinions, we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or we may withdraw from this 
engagement. 
 
We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by 
Government Auditing Standards.  
 
The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will state (1) that the purpose of the 
report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal control and compliance, and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control on compliance, 
and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. The report will also state that the 
report is not suitable for any other purpose.  If during our audit we become aware that City of Abbeville is 
subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this engagement, we will 
communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 
 
Government Auditing Standards requires that we provide you with a copy of our most recent quality control 
review report.  Our September 11, 2019 peer review report accompanies this letter. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of state law, this engagement agreement must be approved by the 
legislative auditor prior to commencement of our audit.   
 
  

9



Honorable Mark Piazza, Mayor 
City of Abbeville 
Page 8 
 

 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to City of Abbeville and believe this letter accurately 
summarizes the significant terms of our engagement.  If you have any questions, please let us know.  If you 
agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return 
to us. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

Darnall, Sikes & Frederick 
(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants) 
 
 
ENGAGEMENT APPROVED: 
 

Management Signature_______________________________ 

Title______________________________________________ 

 

Date______________________________________________  

 

10



 

 

 
 
 

December 13, 2021 
 
Mark Piazza, Mayor 
P.O. Box 1170 
Abbeville, LA 70511-1170 
 
Dear Mayor Piazza, 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the terms of our engagement and the nature and limitations 
of the services we are to provide for the City of Abbeville. 
 
You will agree to the procedures listed in the attached schedule, and will acknowledge that the procedures 
to be performed are appropriate for the intended purpose of this engagement, which is to perform specified 
procedures on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s 
(LLA’s) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period ended December 31, 2021.  
These procedures were also agreed to by LLA, and LLA acknowledges that the procedures are appropriate 
for the intended purpose of the engagement. 
 
Our engagement to apply agreed-upon procedures will be conducted in accordance with attestation 
standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards 
applicable to attestation engagements contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we obtain your written agreement 
to the procedures to be applied and your acknowledgment that those procedures are appropriate for the 
intended purpose of the engagement, as described in this letter.  The agreement and acknowledgement are 
contained within this letter.  A refusal to provide such agreement and acknowledgement will result in our 
withdrawal from the engagement.  We make no representation that the procedures we will perform are 
appropriate for the intended purpose of the engagement or for any other purpose. 
 
Because the agreed-upon procedures listed in the attached schedule do not constitute an examination or 
review, we will not express an opinion or conclusion on the C/C areas.  In addition, we have no obligation 
to perform any procedures beyond those listed in the attached schedule. 
 
We plan to begin our procedures on approximately January 31, 2022 and, unless unforeseeable problems 
are encountered, the engagement should be completed by June 30, 2022.   
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our engagement that lists the procedures performed and 
our findings.  Our report will be addressed to the City and the LLA, and will be published on the LLA’s 
website as a public document.   
 
If we encounter restrictions in performing our procedures, we will discuss the matter with you.  If we 
determine the restrictions are appropriate, we will disclose the restrictions in our report.   
 
Our report will contain a paragraph indicating that had we performed additional procedures, other matters 
might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 
 

11



Mark Piazza, Mayor 
City of Abbeville 
Page 2 
 

 

You understand that the report is intended solely for the use of the City and LLA, and should not be used 
by anyone other than those specified parties. 
 
There may exist circumstances that, in our professional judgment, will require we not issue a report and 
withdraw from the engagement.  Such circumstances include the following: 
 
 You refuse to provide written agreement to the procedures and acknowledge that they are 

appropriate for the intended purpose of the engagement. 
 
 You fail to provide requested written representations, or we conclude that there is sufficient doubt 

about the competence, integrity, ethical values, or diligence of those providing the written 
representations, or we conclude that the written representations provided are otherwise not reliable. 

 
 We determine that the description of the procedures performed or the corresponding findings are 

misleading in the circumstances of the engagement. 
 
 We determine that restrictions on the performance of the engagement are not appropriate. 

 
An agreed-upon procedures engagement is not designed to detect instances of fraud or noncompliance with 
laws or regulations (unless otherwise specified in the agreed-upon procedures); however, we will 
communicate to you any known and suspected fraud and noncompliance with laws or regulations affecting 
the C/C areas that come to our attention. In addition, if, in connection with this engagement, matters come 
to our attention that contradict the results of the procedures performed in the C/C areas, we will 
communicate such matters to you and will disclose those matters in our report.  Such disclosures, if any, 
may not necessarily include all matters that might have come to our attention had we performed additional 
procedures or an examination or review.   
 
You agree to the procedures to be performed, and acknowledge that they are appropriate for the intended 
purpose of the engagement.   
 
You are responsible for the C/C areas and ensuring that these areas are administered in accordance with the 
best practices criteria presented in the SAUPs; and for selecting the criteria and procedures and determining 
that such criteria and procedures are appropriate for your purposes.   
 
In addition, you are responsible for providing us with (1) access to all information of which you are aware 
that is relevant to the performance of the agreed-upon procedures on the subject matter, (2) additional 
information that we may request for the purpose of performing the agreed-upon procedures, and (3) 
unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom we determine it necessary to obtain evidence 
relating to performing those procedures. 
 
At the conclusion of our engagement, we will require certain written representations in the form of a 
representation letter from management that, among other things, will confirm management’s responsibility 
for the C/C areas and administration of those areas in accordance with the best practices criteria in the 
SAUPs. 
 
Steven G. Moosa is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the engagement and signing 
the report or authorizing another individual to sign it. 
 

12



Mark Piazza, Mayor 
City of Abbeville 
Page 3 
 

 

We estimate that our fees for these services will not exceed $9,000.  The fee estimate is based on anticipated 
cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered 
during the engagement.  If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with you and arrive at 
a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 
 
It is understood that our engagement documentation is confidential information.  However, we will make 
our engagement documentation available to any successor auditor, LLA, or recognized external quality 
control review organizations as requested.  We will retain our engagement documentation for five years. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to assist you and believe this letter accurately summarizes the significant 
terms of our engagement.  If you have any questions, please let us know. If you agree with the terms of our 
engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return it to us. If the need for 
additional procedures arises, or the procedures need to be modified, our agreement with you will need to 
be revised. It is customary for us to enumerate these revisions in an addendum to this letter.  If additional 
specified parties of the report are added, we will require that they acknowledge in writing their agreement 
with the procedures performed or to be performed and their acknowledgement that the procedures are 
appropriate for their purposes. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 

Darnall, Sikes, & Frederick 
(A Corporation of Certified Public Accountants) 
 
 
 
Steven G. Moosa, CPA 
 
 
ENGAGEMENT APPROVED: 
 
This letter correctly sets forth the understanding of the City of Abbeville. 
 
 
By:   _____________________________ 

 

Title:   ____________________________ 

 

Date:   ____________________________ 

 

13



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

7 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

 

Procedures 

Report all exceptions to the following procedures, either after each procedure or after all 
procedures within each of the fourteen AUP categories.  “Random” selections may be made using 
Microsoft Excel’s random number generator or an alternate method selected by the practitioner 
that results in an equivalent sample (e.g., those methods allowed under the AICPA Audit Guide - 
Audit Sampling). 

 

Written Policies and Procedures 
 
1. Obtain and inspect the entity’s written policies and procedures and observe that they address 

each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds and the entity’s 
operations:4 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase 
orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation 
required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes.  

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits.  Also, 
policies and procedures should include management’s actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions (e.g. 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for 
employee(s) rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms 
and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards 
are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) 

                                                            
4 For governmental organizations, the practitioner may eliminate those categories and subcategories that do not apply to the organization’s 
operations.  For quasi-public organizations, including nonprofits, the practitioner may eliminate those categories and subcategories that do not 
apply to public funds administered by the quasi-public. 

14



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

8 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

i) Ethics5, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42:1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained 
to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes to the entity’s 
ethics policy . 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

k) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application 
of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, 
processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

l) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

 
Board or Finance Committee6 

 
2. Obtain and inspect the board/finance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the 

board’s enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the fiscal 
period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board’s enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe that the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, 
quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds7, and semi-annual budget- 

                                                            
5 The Louisiana Code of Ethics is generally not applicable to nonprofit entities but may be applicable in certain situations, such as councils on 
aging.  If ethics is applicable to a nonprofit, the nonprofit should have written policies and procedures relating to ethics. 
6 These procedures are not applicable to entities managed by a single elected official, such as a sheriff or assessor. 
7Proprietary and special revenue funds are defined under GASB standards.  The related procedure addresses these funds as a way to verify that 
boards are provided with financial information necessary to make informed decisions about entity operations, including proprietary and special 
revenue operations that are not required to be budgeted under the Local Government Budget Act. 

15



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

9 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

to-actual, at a minimum, on all special revenue funds7. Alternately, for those entities 
reporting on the nonprofit accounting model, observe that the minutes referenced or 
included financial activity relating to public funds8 if those public funds comprised more 
than 10% of the entity’s collections during the fiscal period. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fund balance in the general fund.  If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned 
fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting 
during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

 
Bank Reconciliations 
 
3. Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and 

management’s representation that the listing is complete.  Ask management to identify the 
entity’s main operating account.  Select the entity’s main operating account and randomly 
select 4 additional accounts9 (or all accounts if less than 5).  Randomly select one month from 
the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for 
each selected account, and observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if 
applicable. 

 
Collections (excluding electronic funds transfers )10 
 
4. Obtain a listing of deposit sites11 for the fiscal period where deposits for cash/checks/money 

orders (cash) are prepared and management’s representation that the listing is complete.  
Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5).   

                                                            
 
8 R.S. 24:513 (A)(1)(b)(iv) defines public funds 
9 Accounts selected may exclude savings and investment accounts that are not part of the entity’s daily business operations. 
10 The Collections category is not required to be tested if the entity has a third party contractor performing all collection functions (i.e., receiving 
collections, preparing deposits, and making deposits). 
11 A deposit site is a physical location where a deposit is prepared and reconciled. 

16



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

10 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations12 and management’s 
representation that the listing is complete.  Randomly select one collection location for each 
deposit site (i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies 
and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of 
employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and observe that job duties are 
properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not responsible for 
collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the reconciliation. 

6. Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft covering all 
employees who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy for theft was 
enforced during the fiscal period. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 
under “Bank Reconciliations” above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits 
were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit if multiple deposits 
are made on the same day).  Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other 
than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for testing, such as a cash collection 
log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc.  Obtain supporting documentation for each of the 
10 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or 
drawer). 

                                                            
12 A collection location is a physical location where cash is collected.  An entity may have one or more collection locations whose collections are 
brought to a deposit site for deposit. For example, in a school district a collection location may be a classroom and a deposit site may be the 
school office. 

17



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

11 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

 
Non-Payroll Disbursements (excluding card purchases/payments, travel reimbursements, and 
petty cash purchases) 

 
8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and management’s 

representation that the listing is complete.  Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less 
than 5). 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with 
non-payroll purchasing and payment functions.  Obtain written policies and procedures 
relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire 
of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such 
that: 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a purchase, 
and placing an order/making the purchase. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to 
vendor files. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the 
signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

[Note: Exceptions to controls that constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., 
mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); should not be reported.)] 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity’s non-payroll disbursement 
transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain management’s 
representation that the population is complete.  Randomly select 5 disbursements for each 
location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction and: 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and that 
supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the invoice were received 
by the entity. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

 
Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 
 
11. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and 

P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names of the persons 

18



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

12 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

who maintained possession of the cards13.  Obtain management’s representation that the listing 
is complete. 

12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards if less than 5) 
that were used during the fiscal period.  Randomly select one monthly statement or combined 
statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain 
supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, exception 
reports for excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing (or 
electronically approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder. [Note: 
requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., 
mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be reported.)] 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 
 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding 
fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each 
statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each card should have 
10 transactions subject to testing)14.  For each transaction, observe that it is supported by (1) 
an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written 
documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only).  For missing receipts, the practitioner should 
describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a compensating 
control to address missing receipts, such as a “missing receipt statement” that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

 
Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reimbursements15 (excluding card transactions) 

 
14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements 

during the fiscal period and management’s representation that the listing or general ledger is 
complete.  Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement 
forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the 
supporting documentation.  For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

 
a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more 

than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov).  

                                                            
13 Including cards used by school staff for either school operations or student activity fund operations. 
14 For example, if 3 of the 5 cards selected were fuel cards, only 10 transactions would be selected for each of the 2 credit cards.  Conceivably, if 
all 5 cards randomly selected under procedure #12 were fuel cards, Procedure #13 would not be applicable. 
15 Non-travel reimbursements are not required to be tested under this category. 

19



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

13 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an original 
itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#1h). 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

 
Contracts 
 
15. Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional services, 

materials and supplies, leases, and construction activities that were initiated or renewed during 
the fiscal period.  Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as 
an active vendor list.  Obtain management’s representation that the listing is complete.  
Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, excluding the 
practitioner’s contract, and: 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law16 (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised), if required by law. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by policy 
or law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the original contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract terms (e.g. if approval is required for any amendment was approval documented). 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain the 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the invoice 
and related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

 
Payroll and Personnel 
 
16. Obtain a listing of employees and officials17 employed during the fiscal period and 

management’s representation that the listing is complete.  Randomly select 5 employees or 
officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized 
salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

                                                            
16 If the entity has adopted the state Procurement Code, replace “Louisiana Public Bid Law” with “Louisiana Procurement Code.” 
17 “Officials” would include those elected, as well as board members who are appointed. 

20



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

14 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

17. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period.  For the 5 employees or officials 
selected under #16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay 
period, and: 

a) Observe that all selected employees or officials18 documented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory).  (Note: Generally, officials are not eligible to 
earn leave and do not document their attendance and leave.  However, if the official is 
earning leave according to a policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her 
daily attendance and leave.) 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees 
orofficials. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity’s 
cumulative leave records. 

d) Observe that the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay 
rate found within the personnel file.  

18. Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the 
fiscal period and management’s representation that the list is complete Randomly select two 
employees or officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in 
management’s termination payment calculations and the entity policy on termination 
payments. Agree the hours to the employee or officials’ cumulate leave records, agree the pay 
rates to the employee or officials’ authorized pay rates in the employee or officials’ personnel 
files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

19. Obtain management’s representation that employer and employee portions of third-party 
payroll related amounts (e.g. payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance 
premiums, garnishments, workers’ compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any 
associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

 
Ethics19 

 
20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under “Payroll and 

Personnel” above, obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a. Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour 
of ethics training during the fiscal period. 

                                                            
18 “Officials” would include those elected, as well as board members who are appointed. 
19 The Louisiana Code of Ethics is generally not applicable to nonprofit entities but may be applicable in certain situations, such as councils on 
aging.  If ethics is applicable to a nonprofit, the procedures should be performed. 

21



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

15 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

b. Observe that the entity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and 
official were notified of any changes to the entity’s ethics policy during the fiscal period, 
as applicable. 

 
Debt Service20 
 
21. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the fiscal period and 

management’s representation that the listing is complete.  Select all debt instruments on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval 
was obtained for each debt instrument issued. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and management’s 
representation that the listing is complete.  Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt 
covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree 
actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including 
contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

 
Fraud Notice 

 
23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and 

management’s representation that the listing is complete.  Select all misappropriations on the 
listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the 
misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the 
entity is domiciled. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises21 and website, the notice required by R.S. 
24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds.22 

 

Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity 
 
25. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and 

report “We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management.” 

a. Obtain and inspect the entity’s most recent documentation that it has backed up its 
critical data (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for backing 
up critical data) and observe that such backup occurred within the past week.  If 
backups are stored on a physical medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that 
backups are encrypted before being transported. 

                                                            
20 This AUP category is generally not applicable to nonprofit entities; however, if applicable, the procedures should be performed. 
21 Observation may be limited to those premises that are visited during the performance of other procedures under the AUPs. 
22 This notice is available for download or print at www.lla.la.gov/hotline. 

22



Louisiana Legislative Auditor – Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 

– Fiscal Years Ending 12/31/2021 through 11/30/2022 

 

16 | P a g e  
Last Updated:  November 2021 

b. Obtain and inspect the entity’s most recent documentation that it has tested/verified 
that its backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel 
responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

c. Obtain a listing of the entity’s computers currently in use, and their related locations, 
and management’s representation that the listing is complete.  Randomly select 5 
computers and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers 
have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting 
system software in use are currently supported by the vendor.  

Sexual Harassment 
 
26. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under “Payroll and 

Personnel” above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and 
observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one 
hour of sexual harassment training during the calendar year. 

27. Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its 
website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity’s premises if the entity does not have a 
website). 

28. Obtain the entity’s annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that 
the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that it includes the applicable 
requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

a. Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the 
training requirements; 

b. Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

c. Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

d. Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline 
or corrective action; and 

e. Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

 

23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



RESOLUTION NO.: R-22-___ 
 

BE IT KNOWN AND REMEMBERED, that pursuant to a public notice, a 

regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council of the City of Abbeville was held 

on the 1st day of February, 2022, commencing at 5:30 o’clock p.m. at City Hall, 

101 North State Street, Abbeville, Louisiana, where the following resolution was 

moved, duly seconded, passed and adopted, to-wit: 
 

WHERE AS, The Louisiana Housing Authority provides assistance to 

 qualified low income households for the payment of certain bills for water 

 usage; and 

 

WHERE AS, the City of Abbeville, as the provider of water to said 

 households, must enter into an agreement with The Louisiana Housing 

 Authority which authorizes it to provide its services to the City’s qualified 

 low income households; and 

 

WHERE AS, it is in the best interest of the City of Abbeville and its 

 citizens, who may qualify for this assistance, for the City to enter into such 

 an agreement with The Louisiana Housing Authority. 

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Mayor Mark F. Piazza be, and the 

same is, hereby authorized to appear on behalf of the City to execute the said 

agreement and to do and perform all acts necessary in the premises to secure the 

benefits made available by The Louisiana Housing Authority for qualified low 

income households.   
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 1st day of February, 2022.  

 

 

 

______________________________  ____________________________ 

Hon. Mark F. Piazza, Mayor   Mr. Francis J. Plaisance 
       Councilman at Large 

 

 

______________________________  ____________________________ 

Ms. Roslyn R. White    Mr. Francis Touchet, Jr. 
Councilwoman District A    Mayor Pro-Tem/Councilman District B 

 

 

56



______________________________  ____________________________ 

Mr. Brady Broussard, Jr.    Ms. Terry Y. Broussard 
Councilman District C    Councilwoman District D 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T E 

 

 

I, Kathleen S. Faulk, the duly qualified and appointed Clerk of the City of 

Abbeville, State of Louisiana, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing 

resolution was duly approved at the regular meeting of the Mayor and City Council 

of the City of Abbeville held on February 1, 2022. 

 

THUS DONE AND SIGNED in Abbeville, Louisiana on this _____ day of 

February, 2022. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Kathleen S. Faulk, City Secretary/Treasurer 
 

 

 

 

57



BILL TO: SHIP TO:

SELLERS & ASSOCIATES, INC.
LAFAYETTE, LA 70506

SELLERS & ASSOCIATES, INC.
LAFAYETTE, LA 70506

Page: 1

Quote Number:

Customer:

0064398

M2840ALLEN ENTERPRISES, INC.
Airport Lighting Equipment Sales & Service

5659 Commerce Drive, Suite 100

Orlando, FL 32839-2969

Phone (407) 857-6778

QUOTE

Q

1

Print Date/Quote Date Ship Via FOB Terms

SP:

QTY QUOTED ITEM DESCRIPTION

01/25/2022

UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

BEST WAY ORIGIN PPD&ADD VISA

01/25/2022 0003 KM ALLEN ENTERPRISES

HBL807-S2-IN-66A-ON-3 5,242.965,242.961.00 L-807, SZ 2, 12', LED,6.6A, INT LIT,
W/L-810
HINGED POLE
LESS ANCHOR BOLT ASSEMBLY

35C0082 215.81215.811.00 L-830-6 TX 200W 6.6A/6.6A

HB1049-0012 377.67377.671.00 ANCHOR BOLT CAGE ASSEMBLY (4)
5/8" 8" X 8" X 35"
FOR L-807 WIND CONE

*/FREIGHT 65.0065.001.00

FREIGHT TO SHIP ANCHOR BOLT CAGE ASSEMBLY
HBL807-MARINE TREATED 2,034.252,034.251.00 L807 MARINE TREAT OPTION

Net: 7,935.69

(Estimated or TBD)Freight: 830.00

Sales Tax: 0.00

8,765.69Total:

NONTAX
Valid for 30 days

58



Quotation 

Sellers & Associates Inc
Attn: T.J.
IYA Airport
ABBEVILLE, LA  70510

Phone 
#:  

(337) 232-0777

Note: Credit Card payments will be subject to a 2% surcharge   
Note: Sales Tax, if applicable, will be added to final invoice   

Freight 

sales@halibrite.com |  www.halibrite.com

Hali-Brite Inc.
1119 Madison Street
Brainerd, MN  56401

Quote Number:
m30319

Quote Date:
Jan 25, 2022

Sales Rep

Quoted to: Sellers & Associates Inc
148-B Easy Street
Lafayette, LA  70506

Ship Via

2/24/22

Customer ID Payment Terms

LOLASEAS Prepaid Nick Loreno

Quantity Item Description Unit Price Extension

1.00 L807-S2-IN-66A-ON-3 L807 Windcone-S2-Int LED-6.6a-FAA 5,504.51 5,504.51

Cert.Incl: LED Light, L-810 OB Light, Nylon
Sock,Hinged Steel Pole/Winch, Anchor Bolts

HC 8530.80.0000 US *L830 200W not incl.

1.00 L807-Marine Treated L807 Marine Treat Option. Marine Grade 1,952.88 1,952.88
Powder Coating, Stainless Steel hardware

throughout, Stainless winch, aircraft cable,

Bearings, Anchor. 100 MI OF SEA
1.00 L830-6 200W 66/661 ISOLATION TRANSFORMER 200W- 66A 274.04 274.04

(PRIM)- 66A (SEC)- 60 HZ- PART #11685

1.00 SH SHIPPING includes booking, loading, 1,058.00 1,058.00
insurance.

1.00 SH SHIPPING  Anchor Bolts L807* 72.00 72.00

NOTE-ST SALES TAX, IF APPLICABLE, WILL BE
ADDED TO THE FINAL INVOICE

Shipping to Abbeville Chris Crusta Memorial

Airport (IYA)

Second shipping charge listed is if anchor

bolts need to ship prior to L807.

TJ Savoy

<tjsavoy@sellersandassociates.com>

Total 8,861.43

Sales Tax  

Subtotal 8,861.43

Email:

Phone: 218-454-0956
Fax: 218-454-0972
Email: Sales@Halibrite.com

Ship To: 

tjsavoy@sellersandassociates.com

Expiration Date:

AEI

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70


	Top
	1.	Police Dept. personnel
	1.	Economic Plan overview
	1.	Audit engagement letter
	Audit Engagement Letter

	2.	AUP letter
	AUP Engagement Letter

	3.	Downton Abbeville Streetscaping Phase II
	H.014198 - Letter & Agreement

	4.	Fence repair-coulee at LaFitte park
	Bayou Fencing invoice-Coulee fence repair

	5.	Low income household water program
	LIHWAP agreement
	Lousiana Housing Corporation Water Program

	6.	Murphy USA liquor permit
	7.	Airport variance
	8.	Airport wind cone
	Wind Cone Quotes

	9.	North Abbeville lift station
	10.	Sewer plant basin #4
	11.	Public Works surplus list
	Public works department surplus list

	12.	Smoke detectors
	13.	Lafitte Park Change order #2
	9018-01 CCO#2 Partial

	14.	LaFitte Park payment #3
	9018-01 PPE#3 Partial

	15.	Acceptance Lafitte Park Walking trail
	9018-01 ROA
	9018-01 NOA

	16.	Golf carts
	17.	Security cameras Comeaux Park
	Security camera proposal

	18.	Property purchase 601 S. East Street
	19.	Concrete coulee final payment
	8844-40 PPE#3 (Final) partial execution

	20.	Versalift
	Versalift Big bucket truck
	Versalift Pole truck

	21.	Felicity Substation tie in
	1.	no old business
	Bottom

